Academic Administrative Association President: Jose Lowe jlowe@hccc.edu 201-360-4173

AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE

and

HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE ACADEMIC ADMINISTRATIVE ASSOCIATION

July 1, 2005 to June 30, 2010

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article	Title	Page
ARTICLE I	RECOGNITION	1
ARTICLE II	DEFINITIONS	2
ARTICLE III	MISCELL ANFOLIS PROVISIONS	3
ARTICLE IV	ASSOCIATION RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES	.,4
ARTICLE V	RIGHTS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES	6
ARTICLE VI	WORK OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION	7
ARTICLE VII	DISCIPLINE	7
ARTICLE VIII	LEAVES OF ABSENCE	8
ARTICLE IX	UNIT MEMBERS' RIGHTS AND PROTECTION	
AKTIOLL DI	IN REPRESENTATION	13
ARTICLE X	FACILITIES AND PARKING	14
ARTICLE XI	HOURS OF WORK	14
ARTICLE XII	STAFF DEVELOPMENT	15
ARTICLE XIII	ASSOCIATION ACTIVITIES	16
ARTICLE XIV	INSURANCE	16
ARTICLE XV	PHASED-OUT RETIREMENT	17
ARTICLE XVI	SEPARATION OF EMPLOYMENT	17
ARTICLE XVII	PROBATIONARY AND WORKING TEST PERIOD	18
ARTICLE XVIII	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	
ARTICLE XIX	OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT	24
ARTICLE XX	PERSONNEL RECORDS	24
ARTICLE XXI	EVALUATIONS	25
ARTICLE XXII	MULTI-YEAR CONTRACTS	26
ARTICLE XXIII	COMPENSATION	26
ARTICLE XXIV	MERIT RECOGNITION	27
ARTICLE XXV	PART-TIME EMPLOYMENT	28
ARTICLE XXVI	HOLIDAYS	28
ARTICLE XXVII	REDUCTION IN FORCE	29
ARTICLE XXVIII	TERMINATION OF UNIT MEMBERS	00
	WHOSE POSITIONS ARE GRANT FUNDED	29
ARTICLE XXIX	MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	30
ARTICLE XXX	FULLY BARGAINED PROVISIONS	31
ARTICLE XXXI	NO WAIVER	31
ARTICLE XXXII	NEGOTIATION OF SUCCESSOR AGREEMENT	31
ARTICLE XXXIII	NOTICES	32

ØC.

AGREEMENT

This Agreement made this 21 day of July, 2005; between HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE (hereinafter referred to as the "College") and the HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE ACADEMIC ADMINISTRATIVE ASSOCIATION (hereinafter referred to as the "Association").

WITNESSETH

Whereas, the Public Employment Relations Commission certified the Association as the exclusive representative for the purposes of collective negotiations with respect to wages, hours and all terms and all conditions of employment for those referred to herein within the meaning of the Act; and

Whereas, this certification requires the College to recognize the Association as the exclusive representative for the purposes of collective negotiations with respect to wages, hours, and all terms and all conditions of employment for these College employees;

Now therefore, the College and the Association mutually agree as follows:

ARTICLE I RECOGNITION

- 1. The Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community College recognizes the Hudson County Community College Academic Administrative Association as the exclusive and sole representative for collective negotiations concerning grievances and terms and conditions of employment for all members of the bargaining unit presently employed and hereinafter employed by the Board, including:
 - A. Directors, Assistant Directors, Associate Directors, Associate Deans, Assistant Deans, Managers, Student Activities Coordinator, Assistant Vice President, Publications Coordinator, Superintendent of Plant Operations, Controller, Systems Administrator, Program Analyst, Microcomputer Analyst, Assistant to the Dean, Head Librarian, Admissions Officers, Admissions Recruiters, Financial Assistance Specialists, Continuing Education Assistants, Registrar, Manager of Purchasing Services, Budget Coordinator, Student Accounts Supervisor, and Counselors and Program Coordinators employed by the College, or any other position/title at the College where a Bachelor's degree or higher is required.
 - B. The following positions, classifications, and titles are, however, excluded: instructional staff, faculty, non-professional support staff, security, maintenance workers, confidential employees, and non-supervisory employees.

2. Any member of the bargaining unit who serves as a member of the President's cabinet will not be considered a member of the Unit for the duration of membership in said cabinet. This will not apply to members of the bargaining unit who are periodically invited as guests.

2

獻

3. Any other full-time positions with comparable responsibilities to those positions described in Article IA above, created during the life of this contract, will be added to the bargaining unit contingent upon the mutual agreement between the Association, other bargaining units, and the College. Any dispute regarding same may be arbitrated by the Public Employment Relations Commission (PERC).

ARTICLE II DEFINITIONS

- 1. The life of this Agreement shall be for the five-year period July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2010.
- 2. The term "Board," as used in this Agreement, shall mean the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community College, Hudson County, State of New Jersey, or its duly designated agent(s).
- 3. The term "Association" as used in this Agreement shall mean the Academic Administrative Association of Hudson County Community College, the recognized sole representative for the negotiation unit.
- 4. The term "College" as used in this Agreement shall mean Hudson County Community College, of Hudson County, State of New Jersey, or its duly designated agent(s).
- 5. The term "parties" when used in this Agreement shall mean the College and the Association in its capacity as exclusive representative of the employees in the bargaining unit.
- 6. The term "Unit Member" when used in this Agreement shall refer to any employees represented by the Association in the negotiating unit as defined above, and references to male employees shall include female employees.
- 7. The "Contract Administrator" shall be named by the College President to administer the provisions of this Contract on behalf of the College; and the Contract Administrator shall ordinarily be the principal point of contact in matters regarding the interpretation of the Contract on behalf of the College.

ARTICLE III MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

1. Non Discrimination

The College and the Association agree that there shall be no discrimination, interference, restraint or coercion by either party against any employee because of membership in the Association or for refusal to join the Association. The Association further agrees that it shall not unlawfully coerce employees into membership.

2. Harassment

Harassment in any form is totally incompatible with the conditions of professionalism, trust and teamwork upon which HCCC depends for its success. HCCC therefore will not tolerate any form of harassment of one employee by another. Harassment is understood to include work environment issues as well.

In addition to the above, HCCC has as strong commitment to provide a work environment free from harassment which is expressly prohibited by law.

Any act or incident of harassment should promptly be brought to the attention of the Director of Human Resources, President of the Union, or the Chairman of the Association's Grievance Committee. An informal conference will be conducted among all parties involved to provide the individual alleging such harassment an opportunity to discuss such allegations of harassment.

3. Personal and Academic Freedom

- A. The College herein declares its commitment to sustain the principles of academic freedom that are essential to teaching, administration and research, which are the basic functions of higher education.
- B. The Unit Member shall have freedom in research, publication and professional activities where these activities do not interfere with adequate performance of his duties.
- C. The Unit Members who teach shall have freedom in the classroom to discuss controversial issues relating to the course, with the knowledge that he has an obligation to recognize his unusual influence on the opinions and values of the students with whom he works.
- D. The Unit Member shall retain all rights as a citizen to free speech and publication. Such rights are not, as such, subject to institutional censorship or discipline. However, the bargaining Unit Member presents an image to the public by which his profession and the College may be judged.

Therefore, he must at all times be accurate, show respect for the opinion of others, and must make clear that he is not a spokesperson for the institution.

(

(

6

4. Separability

If any provision of this Agreement or any application of this Agreement to any employee or group of employees is held to be contrary to law or government regulations, then such provision or application shall not be deemed valid and subsisting, except to the extent permitted by the law or government regulations. All other provisions or applications shall continue in full force and effect.

5. Compliance between Individual Contract and Master Agreement

Any individual contract or job description between the Board and an individual Unit Member, heretofore or hereafter executed, shall be subject to and consistent with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. If an individual contract or job description contains any language inconsistent with this Agreement, this Agreement shall be controlling.

ARTICLE IV ASSOCIATION RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES

- 1. The Association and its duly authorized campus representatives may use College equipment, including typewriters, word processors, and personal computers, mimeographing machines, or duplicating equipment, calculators, and all types of audiovisual equipment. Such permission shall be granted provided the equipment and facilities are not otherwise in use, and when regular College procedures for using such equipment and building facilities have been followed. The Association shall pay for the reasonable cost of all materials and supplies incidental to such use and damage to said equipment through use.
- 2. Any representative of the Association required to participate in negotiations, grievance proceedings, conferences or meetings during work hours shall suffer no loss of pay, however, when possible, such activities shall be conducted outside of regular work hours.
- 3. The Association may post material concerning Association activities on designated bulletin boards according to reasonable policies that the College may establish for the posting of any public materials. No information shall be posted on-campus except in these designated spaces. The material shall clearly state that it is posted by the Association and that the Association is solely responsible for its contents and all liability regarding such posting and publication thereof.
- 4. The Association's duly authorized campus representatives shall have the right to reasonable use of the College's internal mail distribution system for Association communications.

- 5. The Association shall have the right to purchase office supplies and other materials from the College suppliers at the price paid by the College, provided this practice is in compliance with applicable law.
- 6. The College agrees to deduct dues for the Association from the wages of an employee covered by this Agreement, pursuant to the existing statute, as amended, provided:
 - A. A current written assignment executed by the employee is submitted to the College. The Association shall be responsible for the execution and submission of the forms to the College.
 - B. The College will deduct the current uniform dues from the pay of the employee(s) commencing ninety (90) days after the date of hire.
 - C. This deduction will be made twice per month.
 - D. If, during the life of this Agreement, there is any change in the rate of membership dues, the Association shall notify the College at least sixty (60) days prior to the effective date of such change.
 - E. The College will provide the Association on a monthly basis a list of all positions within the unit as well as a list of all newly hired employees whose titles fall within the unit.
 - F. The Association shall certify in writing, signed by the President of the Association and filed with the Contract Administrator, the gross amount of the dues for the ensuing year for a Unit Member; such gross amount being an annual sum in equal amount for each member of the Association.
 - G. The College shall deduct such annual dues from 24 paychecks in an equal amount, said equal amount being the annual dues divided by the 24 paychecks to be received by the member of the unit during the deduction period established by the College. Should an Association member require a refund, it shall be the responsibility of the employee to obtain the appropriate refund directly from the Association.
 - H. The Association agrees to hold the College harmless and indemnify the College from all loss, including reasonable attorney's fees, from any and all actions or claims growing from or arising because of this deduction, including specifically, any claim by any member or members of the unit or anyone representing such member(s). The association shall have full responsibility for the funds so withheld and remitted to the Association or any member(s) of the unit concerning any use or expenditure thereof by the Association.

I. If a member of the unit has no earnings due, or in the event an amount is due to the Unit Member for any pay period after all other required or authorized withholdings have been taken, said amount being less than the Association dues to be withheld for such period, no deduction for such pay period will be made by the College for such member. No catch-up withholdings will be made in subsequent pay periods.

1

1

1

- J. Each Unit Member's payroll deduction authorization filed with the Contract Administrator as provided in Section 6A above shall remain in effect during the life of this Agreement unless revoked in writing by the Unit Member. The Unit Member may revoke this authorization providing written notice to the Contract Administrator. Once revoked, the member must pay a representation fee of 85 percent of the current annual dues.
- 7. Nothing contained within this Article shall diminish, negate, or abrogate the reservations made and contained in the Management Rights provisions of the Agreement.

ARTICLE V RIGHTS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

- 1. The Board of Trustees on its own behalf and on the behalf of the electors of Hudson County hereby retains and reserves unto itself all powers, rights, authority, duties, and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it by the laws and constitution of the State of New Jersey and of the United States, including but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the right:
 - A. To maintain executive management and administrative control of the College and its properties and facilities and the professional activities of its employees as related to the conduct of the College affairs, except as set forth in the Agreement; and
 - B. To hire all employees and determine their initial rate of pay subject to the provisions of law, to determine their qualifications and conditions of their continued employment or their dismissal or demotion, and to promote and transfer all such employees; and
 - C. To establish grading policies and courses of instruction, including special programs, and to provide for athletic, recreational and social events for students, as deemed necessary or advisable by the Board; and
 - D. To decide upon the means and methods of instruction and the duties, responsibilities, and assignments of instructors and other employees with respect thereto, and with respect to administrative and non-teaching

activities, and the terms and conditions of employment, except as set forth in this Agreement; and

- E. To determine class schedules, non-classroom assignments, the hours of instruction, and the duties, responsibility, and assignments of faculty members.
- 2. The exercise of the forgoing powers, rights, authority, duties, and responsibilities by the Board, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations, and procedures in furtherance thereof, and the use of judgment and discretion in connection therewith shall be limited only by the specific and expressed terms of this Agreement and then only to the extent such specific and expressed terms hereof are in conformance with the constitution and laws of the State of New Jersey and the Constitution of the United States and applicable statutes and regulations.
- 3. No action, statement, agreement, settlement, or representation made by any member of the unit shall impose any obligation or duty to be considered to be authorized by or binding upon the Board unless and until the Board has agreed thereto by appropriate Resolution.
- 4. Nothing contained within this Article shall diminish, negate, or abrogate any article or provision of this Article.

ARTICLE VI WORK OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION

- 1. No Unit Member, officer or representative of the Association shall call, sanction, approve or engage in any strike or work interruption during the term of this Agreement.
- 2. The Board and/or its agents will not engage in any lockout during the term of this Agreement.

ARTICLE VII DISCIPLINE

1. Just Cause Provision

No member shall be disciplined, reprimanded, reduced in rank or compensation, discharged or suspended without just cause. Any such action asserted by the College, or any representative thereof, shall be subject to the grievance procedure herein set forth. The College will make every effort to notify the Unit Member prior to the filing of any formal charges against him. This provision shall not apply in the case of non-renewal. In the event that notification is by mail, notification

shall be complete upon the College's obtaining an official post office-stamped receipt.

(

2. Required Hearings

Prior written notice shall be given when an employee is required to appear at a hearing concerning any matter that could adversely affect his position, salary or benefits. This notice will include the reasons for the meeting or interview. The employee is entitled to the presence of a representative of the Association during such meetings.

3. Procedure

Progressive discipline procedure shall be used whenever possible.

4. Immediate Suspensions

When the presence of the Unit Member is determined to be dangerous to the welfare of the employees or detrimental to the interest of the College, the appropriate Dean or Vice President or his designee may suspend the offender immediately, pending investigation, formal charges and subsequent hearing. Serious breaches of discipline may require immediate suspension or dismissal rather than counseling, warning, or written reprimand.

5. Notice to the Association

The Association will be notified of all formal disciplinary actions as soon as possible after the action, but no later than 24 hours after the occurrence.

ARTICLE VIII LEAVES OF ABSENCE

1. Sick Leave/Personal Illness

A. Purpose and Use of Sick Leave/Personal Illness

Sick leave shall be defined as a required absence from work due to a personal illness, accident, or exposure to contagious disease and/or illness of a member of the employee's immediate family.

1. The immediate family shall be defined as spouse, children, parents, foster parents, siblings, grandparents, grandchildren, stepparents, stepchildren, in-laws, or other persons who occupy such position within family or a domestic partner.

- 2. The College shall provide an opportunity for an employee with personal illness/disability to request approved time away from work to seek resolution of the problem and/or recuperate so that he may return to full productivity.
- 3. Sick leave may be utilized only to the extent that it is actually accrued. With the approval of the President or his designee, a member of this unit with less than one (1) year of service may be advanced the use of up to ten (10) sick days bridging the Unit Member to eligibility for short-term disability in prolonged periods of illness.
- 4. A Unit Member shall not be compensated for unused, accrued sick leave upon termination or retirement. However, those employees who have 10 or more years of service at the College will be compensated at the rate of 50% for all accrued but unused sick days up to a maximum of \$15,000 at the time of separation. The Human Resources Department shall inform Unit Members on or before July 1st of each year of the number of sick leave days accumulated to his credit.

B. Rate of Accrual

Sick leave shall be earned at the rate of 1.25 days per full calendar month worked with no accrual limit, said days being credited on the twenty-fifth day of the month.

C. Medical Certification

Medical certification will only be required after either five consecutive days of absence or ten cumulative days of absence within a 90-day period. Medical certification shall not be required by a Unit Member's supervisor, but only by the Director of Human Resources to verify an illness or to ensure that the employee has sufficiently recovered to return to work. The College reserves the right to designate and seek the advice of a doctor of its own choosing to verify the same.

In the event that the College exercises this right, it shall pay for the designated consultation.

2. Personal Leave

Effective July 1st of each year, full-time employees within this unit shall be eligible for three (3) paid personal days per year. Personal days for employees with less than one (1) full fiscal year of service shall be prorated. Personal days are non-cumulative and must be taken in the year granted. Separating employees shall not be compensated for days not taken. Ordinarily, requests for personal days should be scheduled with the immediate supervisor, however, in emergency

situations, requests may be granted without prior scheduling at the discretion of the immediate supervisor. Personal leave may be scheduled in units of one-half day, and may be taken in conjunction with other paid leave.

獻.

3. Bereavement Leave

An Employee covered by this Agreement shall be granted paid time off up to five (5) working days for the death of a member of the immediate family or person domiciled in the residence of the Unit Member, for the purpose of attending the funeral. The "Immediate Family" shall be defined as spouse, children, parents, foster parents, siblings, grandparents, grandchildren, stepparents, stepchildren, in-laws, or other person who occupies such position within the family, or a domestic partner. The employee shall not be entitled to bereavement leave if at the time of death in the family the employee is on leave or otherwise absent from work under any other provision of this Agreement, except for vacation.

4. Jury Duty

A member of the unit who is summoned to court to perform jury duty, or who is subpoenaed to appear in matters in which he has no personal or pecuniary interest shall suffer no loss of salary/wages thereby, provided that the employee remits to the College any sums of money received in compensation in excess of what the College administration determines are reasonable expenses for such duty or attendance, and further provided that notice is given to the immediate supervisor of the dates of absence upon receipt of a summons or subpoena. A subpoenaed member of the bargaining unit shall attempt to arrange the court appearance to interfere minimally with regularly assigned duties.

5. Military and National Service Leave

A member of this unit who leaves his position for extended compulsory active duty in the military service of the United States during a state of war or national emergency, or for periods of required military training, shall be granted a military leave without pay for the duration of his commitment in accordance with the terms of applicable laws.

A. Reinstatement of Returning Veteran

A returning veteran shall be entitled to return to his original position or another position for which the College considers him qualified at the first available opportunity. A returning veteran will be reinstated at the same rate of pay he would have received had employment been uninterrupted. Military service shall not be considered a break of service and shall be counted toward seniority at the College. If an employee has not completed the required probationary period at the time of being called into active service, such employee shall be required to complete it upon return.

B. National Guard

A regular employee who is a member of a reserve component of the armed forces of the United States shall be entitled to a leave with pay for the obligatory annual active duty training period, not to exceed fifteen (15) days. A minimum of two weeks' notice must be given to the supervisor and a copy of the official governmental orders authorizing the military training to be forwarded to the Department of Human Resources.

6. Vacation Leave

- A. Unit Members shall be granted vacation leave with pay starting from the first day of the month following the date of hire at the rate of 1.66 days per calendar month worked credited on the twenty-fifth (25) day of the month. Vacation time accrued in one fiscal year must be taken by the end of the next fiscal year except when the Unit Member's timely request for vacation has been refused by reason of staffing needs as certified by the Contract Administrator. Employees may not carry over vacations beyond the next fiscal year and may not accrue more than twenty-two (22) days without approval of the President or his designee.
- B. Vacation days may not be taken in segments of less than one-half days. The Human Resources Department will inform Unit Members of the accrued vacation balance prior to July 1st of each year.
- C. A Unit Member shall be entitled to receive his regular pay in advance of departure for vacation provided that advance notice of a minimum of fifteen (15) days is given.

7. Leave of Absence Without Pay

- A. An approved extraordinary leave of absence without pay may be granted to a member of the Unit for a period not to exceed one (1) year. Request for such leave shall be made in writing to the appropriate Dean or Vice President who will make his recommendation to the President. If the leave is denied by either the appropriate Dean/Vice President or the President, the denial may be appealed to the Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting. The decision of the Board shall be final and not subject to the grievance and arbitration provision of this Agreement.
- B. In extenuating circumstances, a leave of absence in excess of one (1) year may be granted by the Board of Trustees upon the recommendation of the

President. The decision of the Board shall be binding and shall not be subject to review, grievance or arbitration.

- C. The terms and conditions of the leave shall be made in writing and signed by the Unit Member and the College President or his/her designee.
- D. During the period of such unpaid leave, all health benefits shall remain in effect to the extent permitted by the terms of the policy provided that the Unit Member pays the required premium.

8. Sabbatical

The Board will establish a sabbatical leave program to furnish members of the unit with an opportunity for professional development through study, research and/or other pursuits as may contribute to professional growth. A sabbatical leave may be recommended by the College President for approval by the Board of Trustees, subject to the following conditions:

- A Unit Member must have been in the full-time employment of the College for six (6) consecutive uninterrupted years.
- B. Application shall be made to the immediate supervisor who will forward the application and his recommendations to the President. The President will then make his recommendation to the Board of Trustees.
- C. A maximum of three (3) members of the Association may be on Sabbatical Leave in any one academic year.
- D. A Unit Member must wait at least six (6) consecutive years after taking leave before he is eligible for another sabbatical leave.
- E. Compensation during the leave shall be full salary for one (1) six-month period, half salary for twelve months or full salary for twelve months with the Unit Member working one-half (1/2) of his scheduled hours, subject to approval of the President.

獻

F. A Unit Member who has been employed by the College for ten (10) or more consecutive years may apply for terminal sabbatical at any time. Terminal sabbatical may be granted at one-half (1/2) pay for two (2) years. Application must be made to the appropriate Dean or Vice President, who will attach his recommendation and forward the application to the President. The President will append his recommendation to the application, which will then be presented to the Board of Trustees, and the decision of the Board shall be binding and not subject to arbitration. Employment of the Unit Member will be terminated at the end of said leave.

- G. Any Unit Member on paid sabbatical leave of absence shall retain all insurance and pension benefits without exception during the period of said leave to the extent allowable by the applicable law or terms of the controlling insurance policy.
- H. Acceptance of sabbatical leave obligates the recipient to return to the College for at least one (1) year, except as referenced in Item F above. Failure to do so shall obligate the employee to reimburse the College for salary and benefits paid during the leave.
- I. The College may establish a committee to assist in the evaluation of a sabbatical proposal. The terms of a sabbatical leave shall be set forth in writing and signed by the College and the Unit Member. Said writing shall stipulate what documentation shall be required of the employee to certify sabbatical leave activities.

9. Family and Medical Leave Provisions

Unit members who have been employed by the College for at least one year may apply for a twelve (12) week unpaid family leave of absence. Eligible employees are entitled to twelve (12) work weeks of unpaid job protection leave during any twelve (12) month period to attend to needs of immediate family members as defined under the Sick Leave section of this Article. The Unit Member may be required to provide advance leave notice and medical certification. Taking of leave may be denied if conditions are not met.

ARTICLE IX UNIT MEMBERS' RIGHTS AND PROTECTION IN REPRESENTATION

Pursuant to Chapter 123, Public Laws of 1974, the Board of Trustees hereby agrees that every employee of the College shall have the right to freely organize, join and support the Association and its affiliates for the purpose of engaging in collective negotiations and other concerted activities for mutual aid and protection. As a duly selected body exercising governmental power under the laws of the State of New Jersey, the Board undertakes and agrees that it shall not directly or indirectly discourage or deprive any Unit Member the enjoyment of any rights conferred by Chapter 123, Public Laws of 1974, or other laws of New Jersey or the Constitutions of the State of New Jersey and the United States; that it shall not discriminate against any Unit Member with respect to hours, wages or any terms or conditions of employment by reason of his membership in the Association and its affiliates; participation in any activities of the Association and its affiliates' collective bargaining negotiations with the Board, or his institution of a grievance, complaint, or proceeding under this Agreement or otherwise with respect to any terms or conditions of employment.

ARTICLE X FACILITIES AND PARKING

(

8

€

- 1. The College will provide office space for the Association and will allow the Association to have a telephone installed at a mutually agreeable location. The cost associated with installation and use of the telephone shall be borne solely by the Association, and shall be used for the transaction of all Association business.
- 2. The College will make every effort to provide appropriate parking space for Unit Members and, at its discretion, may charge for parking in order to recover costs of parking lot maintenance.

ARTICLE XI HOURS OF WORK

1. Normal Work Hours

- A. The work schedule for members of this unit consist of thirty-five (35) hours in a five (5) day period. Seven (7) hours per day, exclusive of a meal period, shall be considered the daily work hours. It is mutually agreed that operational needs of a particular office or department shall govern the starting and ending times of a schedule, subject to approval of the appropriate Vice President or Dean.
- B. Administrators whose schedules are governed by class sessions shall have the right to flexible hours in regard to beginning and ending times for the daily work schedule; provided such scheduling does not hinder departmental or College operations.
- C. Break periods shall be left to the discretion of the supervisor.

2. Summer Hours

A. The policy of summer work hours shall be at the sole discretion of the Board of Trustees upon the recommendation of the President. Hudson County Community College will make every effort to notify the Unit Members with respect to such policy each year as early as possible.

ARTICLE XII STAFF DEVELOPMENT

1. Commitment to Staff Development

The Association and Administration acknowledge the importance of staff development and encourage Unit Members to participate in available staff development activities. The College will provide its full-time personnel with the opportunity to upgrade their professional skills.

A Unit Member, who obtains his Bachelor degree, Master's degree, or PHD, will receive a one-time merit increase of \$2,000 added to his or her base salary, upon his or her completion of thirty (30) job-related educational credits, six (6) of which must be earned by him or her during the term of the Collective Bargaining Agreement (between July 1, 2005 and June 30, 2010). In addition, the Unit Member must still be employed by the College upon his or her completion of the 30th credit in order to receive the one-time \$2,000 merit increase. Credits alone are insufficient. The degree must be obtained in order to receive the one time merit increase.

A Unit Member who pursues a Doctoral degree is not restricted to credits that are job related. The Unit Member pursuing a Doctoral degree must still, however, complete thirty (30) credits, six (6) of which must be earned him or her during the term of the Collective Bargaining Agreement (between July 1, 2005 and June 30, 2010). In addition, the Unit Member must still be employed by the College upon his or her completion of the 30th credit in order to receive the one-time \$2,000 merit increase.

2. Conference and Travel

Members of the Association shall have the right to apply for attendance at job-related professional association annual conferences, workshops, seminars, or other training conferences, subject to prior approval. When the College requires such attendance, the College shall pay all expenses.

- A. Meal allowances will be reimbursed up to \$40 per diem (including gratuities). Meals included in registration fees shall be deducted from the per diem.
- B. Receipts will be required for all reimbursed expenses. The College will not pre-pay hotel accommodations.

3. Tuition Remission

A. Full-time employees may receive a refund of tuition, inclusive of fees, of a maximum of \$6,000 for courses taken during any fiscal year, subject to fund availability.

1

€.

1

- B. Course(s) may be part of an accredited undergraduate or graduate degree program or selected course(s) in the employee's current related discipline or job-related areas.
- C. An applicant should secure the supervisor's approval and budget authorization prior to enrolling in courses to ensure that work contemplated will qualify for reimbursement and that funds are committed. A completed tuition reimbursement form must be submitted to the Human Resources Department prior to registering for class.
- D. A request to be reimbursed must be submitted immediately upon completion of the course(s) together with the employee's proof of payment and a grade report. The applicant shall obtain a grade of "C" or better for reimbursement.

4. Mileage Allowance

- A. Unit Members required to use their personal vehicles for authorized College business shall be reimbursed at the prevailing IRS rate. Any request for reimbursement must be accompanied by either valid receipts or a log verifying the destination and mileage.
- B. Any expenses incurred by a Unit Member for necessary parking and tolls in connection with performing authorized College business will be reimbursable and must be submitted for reimbursement with appropriate receipts.

ARTICLE XIII ASSOCIATION ACTIVITIES

- 1. Association members shall not conduct Association business on College time or College premises unless specifically provided for in this Agreement.
- 2. The Association will provide the College with a list of Officers no later than fifteen (15) days after the signing of this Agreement. The Association will notify the College within twenty-four (24) hours of any changes in the Officers.

ARTICLE XIV INSURANCE

- 1. The health, prescription and dental insurance programs shall remain in effect for the life of this Agreement and will be defined on the cost of premiums. Hudson County Community College shall participate in the New Jersey State health and prescription insurance benefits programs with their applicable premiums and copay amounts. For the existing year the current co-pay is \$5.00/\$1.00. These copay amounts, however, are not binding on Hudson County Community College in any way as to future co-pay amounts implemented by the State benefits program and for which the Unit Member will be responsible.
 - Should the increase in cost of medical insurance exceed twelve and one-half (12.5) percent in any one year, the College agrees to reopen negotiations on benefit contributions only.
- 2. The existing vision care plan provided by the College to all Unit Members shall remain in effect during the life of this Agreement.
- 3. The dental benefits provided by the College to all Unit Members is increased to a maximum of \$1,500.00.
- 4. The existing short-term disability plan provided by the College to all Unit Members shall remain in effect during the life of this Agreement.
- 5. The College reserves the right to change, without negotiation, the manner in which or the service provider through which the aforementioned benefits are provided, as long as such benefits are equivalent to those now, or in the future, provided.

ARTICLE XV PHASED-OUT RETIREMENT

A Unit Member will be eligible for a retirement phase-out after 15 years of employment with the College. A Unit Member who participates in a phased-out retirement will work 60% of the hours normally worked by that Unit Member during the academic year immediately preceding initiation of his or her retirement. The duration of the phase-out is one year. Unit Members who, under the retirement phase-out, work at least 20 hours per week will continue to be eligible to participate in the health insurance plan provided by the College.

ARTICLE XVI SEPARATION OF EMPLOYMENT

Upon leaving the employ of the College, the Unit Member will receive all monies to which he is entitled. The final check will be issued upon receipt of any and all College property. An employee may resign, in good standing, from his position by providing the College with at least three (3) weeks written notice of his intent to leave the employ of the College.

ARTICLE XVII PROBATIONARY AND WORKING TEST PERIOD

- 1. All new appointments shall be for a probationary period of ninety (90) days.
- 2. During the probationary period, employees may be terminated by the College without such termination being subject to the grievance and arbitration provisions set forth in this Agreement.

ARTICLE XVIII GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

1. Purpose

The purpose of this procedure is to secure, at the lowest possible level, equitable solutions to the problems that may arise affecting the terms and conditions of employment. The parties agree that this procedure will be kept as informal as may be appropriate.

V.

*

2. Definitions

- A. Grievance shall be defined as an allegation by an employee that he has been adversely affected by a violation or misinterpretation of the specific provisions of his individual employment contract or this Collective Bargaining Agreement, or as an allegation by the Association that it has been adversely affected by a violation or misinterpretation of the specific provisions of the Association Rights Article of this Collective Bargaining Agreement. Unit Members given three (3) days' suspension, three (3) times within a twelve (12) month period may go to binding arbitration.
- B. Contractual Grievance shall be defined as a dispute that may arise between the parties concerning the application, meaning, or interpretation of an express provision of this Agreement. Evaluation and non-reappointment are not grievable beyond the Board of Trustees.
- C. A Working Day is a day in which the administrative offices of the College are open for normal business.
- D. The Immediate Supervisor is the supervisor having immediate jurisdiction over the Grievant, or the administrator designated by the College to adjust the grievance.
- E. A Grievant is an individual member of the unit who is seeking redress of an alleged grievance, or the Association acting on behalf of an employee.

3. Procedures

A Unit Member may, at any time during the grievance procedure, be represented by an Association representative with respect to the Unit Member's grievance. The following Steps constitute the sole and exclusive method for resolving grievances between the parties covered by this Agreement. The parties agree to make every reasonable good faith effort to resolve grievances through Steps 1, 2 and 3 of the grievance procedure before proceeding to Steps 4 and beyond.

A. Step 1:

A Grievant may initiate his grievance in the following manners:

- a. by formal Grievance Complaint only; or
- b. by informal conference followed by formal Grievance Complaint if not resolved by informal conference; or
- c. by formal Grievance Complaint followed by informal conference.

In order to proceed to Step 2 under this procedure, a Grievant must at least file a formal Grievance Complaint, as set forth below.

1. Grievance Complaint

A Grievant must file a written Grievance, whether or not used in conjunction with the informal conference procedure set forth in Section 2, below, no later than twenty (20) working days following the occurrence of the grievable incident or when the Grievant would reasonably be expected to know of the occurrence of the grievable incident. This Grievance shall be written on College-prepared forms. The Grievance shall be filed with the Contract Administrator designated by the College. The Grievance shall be deemed filed when it is received by the Contract Administrator.

If the Grievant does not file a formal Grievance within twenty (20) working days following the occurrence of the grievable incident or when Grievant would reasonably be expected to know of the occurrence of the grievable incident, he will not, under any circumstances, be permitted to continue his grievance through the remaining Steps of this procedure.

2. Informal Conference

If the Grievant wishes to seek more informal means of resolution of his grievance, he may request an informal conference with his supervisor. A Grievant may request an informal conference even if a formal Grievance has been filed pursuant to Section 1 above. The conference must be held no more than fifteen (15) working days following the occurrence of the grievable incident or when the Grievant would reasonably be expected to know of the occurrence of the grievable incident. Nothing in this Section shall be construed as permitting the Grievant to file a formal Grievance Complaint later than twenty (20) working days following the occurrence of the grievable incident or when the Grievant would reasonably be expected to know of the occurrence of the grievable incident.

6

1

*

- a. If the Grievant is dissatisfied with the results of his conference with his supervisor and he has not yet filed a formal Grievance pursuant to Section 1 above he shall, within five (5) working days of the conference, so inform his immediate supervisor and file a written Grievance on College-prepared forms. The Grievance shall be filed with the Contract Administrator designated by the College. The Grievance shall be deemed filed when it is received by the Contract Administrator. Under no circumstances will the Grievant be permitted to file a formal Grievance Complaint after five (5) working days of the conference.
- b. If the Grievant is dissatisfied with the results of his conference with his supervisor and he has already filed a formal Grievance pursuant to Section 1 above he shall, within five (5) working days of the conference, so inform his immediate supervisor and transmit a written request to the appropriate Dean or Vice President for an interview pursuant to Step 2 below.
- c. If the Grievant is satisfied with the results of his conference with his supervisor and he has already filed a formal Grievance pursuant to Section 1 above, he shall immediately withdraw his formal Grievance.
- d. If the Grievant is satisfied with the results of his conference with his supervisor and he has not filed a formal Grievance pursuant to Section 1 above, he shall not be required to take any further action.

If the Unit Member is unable to schedule a conference with his supervisor within fifteen (15) working days following the occurrence of the grievable incident or when the Unit Member would reasonably be expected to know of the occurrence of the grievable incident, he shall file a formal Grievance pursuant to Section 1 above no later than twenty (20) working days following the occurrence of the grievable incident or when the Grievant

would reasonably be expected to know of the occurrence of the grievable incident.

The filing with the Contract Administrator of the formal Grievance shall constitute fulfillment of Step 1 and shall constitute a request for Step 2.

B. Step 2:

Upon receipt of the completed Grievance complaint form, the appropriate Dean or Vice President shall arrange for an interview of the Grievant by the Dean or Vice President or his designee. Such interview shall be held within eight (8) working days of the filing of the Grievance complaint form. If the Grievant has been contacted for the scheduling of such interview but he has requested or plans to request an informal conference pursuant to Section A2 above, the Grievant shall so notify the appropriate Dean or Vice President, at which time the interview will be held, if at all, within eight (8) working days of the filing of the written request for an interview pursuant to Section 2b above. In no event shall the interview be held more than twenty-eight (28) working days following the occurrence of the grievable incident or when the Grievant would reasonably be expected to know of the occurrence of the grievable incident.

Within eight (8) days of the interview the Dean or Vice President shall inform the Grievant, in writing, of his findings. Specifically, the Dean or Vice President shall inform the Grievant of his finding either that the Grievance is unfounded or unwarranted, or that the Grievance is justified. If the Dean or Vice President finds the Grievance to be justified he shall also inform the Grievant of the appropriate steps, if any, that the Grievant should follow in order to resolve his grievance.

- C. Step 3: The Grievant may appeal the decision of the Dean or Vice President to President if the Grievant determines that the grievance has not been appropriate resolved. The appeal must be made in writing within ten (10) working days of receipt of the Dean/Vice President's response. The President will make a written response to the Grievant within fifteen (15) working days of the receipt of the appeal. Prior to making such written response, the Grievant, the President, the Director of Human Resources, and a Union representative shall meet to discuss the grievance.
- D. Step 4: If the Grievant determines that the President's response to the appeal is not satisfactory, the Grievant may appeal in writing to the Board of Trustees within ten (10) working days of the receipt of the President's response. Such appeal shall be communicated to the Board through its secretary. The Board, at its sole discretion, may elect to review or not to review the grievance. If it elects to review the grievance, it may, in its discretion, review the same solely on the basis of the record of the prior

proceedings of the grievance. The decision of the Board of Trustees in all manners relating to the grievance shall constitute completion of the grievance procedure. The Board will notify the Grievant of its decision within thirty (30) calendar days of its hearing or review of the appeal. The Board and Grievant may, at their individual discretion and expense, have the right to legal counsel.

¢

。

1

鮲

E. Step 5: In the event that the grievance has not been satisfactorily resolved at *Step 4*, the Association and only the Association, may submit the matter to binding arbitration in accordance with the procedures of the Public Employment Relations Commission (PERC) on the conditions set forth in Section 4, below.

4. Arbitration

- A. The grievance must be a Contractual Grievance as defined in Section 1 of this Article.
- B. The request for arbitration shall be filed by the President of the Association or his designee.
- C. The request for arbitration must be filed with the appropriate State agency no later than ten (10) working days after receipt of the response of the Board of Trustees pursuant to Section 3(D) (Step 4), above.

5. Miscellaneous Provisions

- A. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as compelling the Association to submit a grievance to arbitration. The Association's decision to request the movement of a grievance to arbitration or to terminate the grievance prior to submission to arbitration is final.
- B. In the event of arbitration, the cost of the arbitrator's services shall be shared equally by the parties. Lost cancellation fees shall be the sole responsibility of the party requesting the postponement.
- C. In the case where an alleged grievance is based upon an action of a Dean or a Vice President or the designee of one of these individuals, the grievance shall commence at that level and then proceed through subsequent steps.
- D. Except for the notice provisions and all procedures set forth in this Article, strict rules of evidence and requirements of substantive and procedural due process will not apply.

- E. The presence of a duly authorized representative of the Association, as specifically authorized by the grieving bargaining Unit Member, shall be permitted at all formal steps of the grievance process outlined in this Article.
- F. Failure by the Grievant to process a grievance shall constitute determination of the grievance at the last step to which the grievance was taken.
- G. In the absence of a written reply being given to the Grievant within the time specified, the grievance is considered to be denied, and the Grievant may submit the grievance to the next level.
- In an effort to expedite the grievance process, the number of days specified for action in the grievance procedure should be considered a maximum. The time limits specific in Step 2 through 5 may, however, be extended by the mutual written agreement of the Grievant and the representative of the College at each step.
- I. All grievances filed shall be completed upon the College-supplied form that shall provide for at least the following information:
 - I. The Article, Section, and page number of that portion of this Agreement allegedly violated;
 - 2. The date of alleged violation;
 - 3. The relief requested:
 - 4. The Grievant's signature;
 - 5. A synopsis of the specific facts giving rise to the grievance.
- J. All formal communications, notices, and papers related to this grievance procedure shall be in writing and served in person or by United States mail, Certified, Return Receipt Requested.
- K. The cost of a stenographer shall be borne by the party obtaining the record pursuant to the appropriate rules of the Public Employment Relations Commission (PERC).
- L. Nothing in this grievance procedure shall preclude the Grievant from pursuing available legal redress to review the merits of the grievance after exhaustion of the grievance procedure described herein. If however, the Grievant chooses to pursue legal remedies during the grievance process, the grievance shall be terminated, and it shall be deemed that the employee shall have waived his right of grievance.
- M. Consistent with case law, the Association can request from the College information that will enable the Association to process a grievance.

ARTICLE XIX OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT

Full-time employees of the College must consider the College their primary employer. As such, they must be available and able to perform all of the required duties of the position as outlined in the existing job description. Outside employment must not interfere with an employee's work hours and/or job performance.

ARTICLE XX PERSONNEL RECORDS

- 1. The official personnel records of each member of the bargaining unit shall be kept in files by the College Human Resources Department. Other working files or records may be kept by staff and administration or the Board, but no punitive action or action related to compensation or job status shall be taken based on material other than that contained in the official personnel records. Such actions may be taken, however, by the College upon material included in the personnel records of a member of the unit prior to any written response under Section 4 and any appeals made by the Unit Member against such actions must be made to the appropriate Deans/Vice Presidents under Section 5 and 6 of this Article.
- 2. Upon appropriate request, a member of the unit shall have access to his personnel records, except for confidential documents to which access is privileged, such as credentials, peer evaluations; or letters of recommendation. Such access to the non confidential information shall be granted by the end of the next working day after such request is received.
- Upon appropriate request, access to official personnel records may be given to College administrative and supervisory staff with a right and need for information contained therein to discharge their official duties. Additionally, such access may be granted to external agencies with appropriate legal authorization. The access log shall be part of the personnel records and shall not be considered confidential.

Ø--

- 4. A member of the unit may file a written response to an item included in his personnel records. Such response shall be included in the personnel records.
- A member of the unit may request the Human Resources Department to include relevant materials in his official records. In the event the request to include materials is refused, the refusal is appealable directly to the appropriate Dean or Vice President, the decision of whom shall not be grievable. Nothing in this paragraph shall abrogate the provisions contained in Paragraph 4 above.
- A member of the unit may request in writing to the Human Resources
 Department that materials be removed from his personnel records. If the request

is not honored, the member shall be so notified in writing. In the event the request for removal is refused, the refusal is appealable directly to the appropriate Dean or Vice President, and his decision shall be final. Written notification from the appropriate Dean or Vice President to the employee shall be included in the official records, and his decision shall not be grievable. Nothing in this paragraph shall abrogate the provisions contained in Paragraph 4 above.

- 7. Grievance records shall be filed in the official personnel records and shall be treated as confidential. Access shall be granted only upon the written authorization of the Director of Human Resources, the President or his designee. Upon appropriate request, the Unit Member shall have access to his grievance records. Such access by the Unit Member will be granted by the end of the next working day after appropriate request is received.
- 8. The Human Resources Department may require the submission of certified transcripts for any course and degree work claimed on a basis for setting compensation or determining qualifications, for inclusion in the office records, as a condition for employment, or release of compensation.

The parties will establish an independent committee for the purpose of establishing procedures to assist in accomplishing the objectives set forth in this paragraph.

- 9. Materials placed in a Unit Member's official records shall not be removed without the knowledge of the member for two (2) years after placement.
- 10. Except as required by law, Hudson County Community College shall remove disciplinary documentation from the personnel file of a Unit Member after five (5) years.

ARTICLE XXI EVALUATIONS

A Unit Member shall be formally evaluated at least once during each fiscal year by his supervisor. The employee has the right to respond to the evaluation on the evaluation form in the Comments section designated for that purpose, or by attachment. Each employee is requested to sign his evaluation indicating that he has reviewed the evaluation. The signature of the employee indicates that the employee has read the evaluation and does not necessarily indicate his agreement with the contents therein. A copy of each employee evaluation will be placed in the employee's official personnel record, and the supervisor will provide a copy for the evaluated employee.

ARTICLE XXII MULTI-YEAR CONTRACTS

A committee will be formed to review the feasibility of multi-year contracts. Said committee shall be comprised of members of the Association and individuals appointed by the College.

ARTICLE XXIII COMPENSATION

1. Salaries.

The College will give Unit Members a 4.25 percentage increase for year one of the CBA. The increase will be retroactive to July 1, 2005 only for those Unit Members who were employed by the College as of July 1, 2005.

The College will give Unit Members a 4.25 percentage increase for year two of this Agreement.

The College will give Unit Members a 4.25 percentage increase for year three of this Agreement.

The College will give Unit Members a 4.25 percentage increase for year four of this Agreement.

The College will give Unit Members a 4.25 percentage increase for year five of this Agreement.

W:

\$(C.

2. Longevity

A. Longevity increment to be implemented as indicated below:

End of five (5) years of service	-	\$250.00
End of ten (10) years of service	-	\$500.00
End of fifteen (15) years of service	-	\$750.00
End of twenty (20) years of service	-	\$1,000.00

B. Longevity increment will not be included in the base salary but will be paid once each year on or about July 1st.

3. Equity Adjustment.

A regular employee who has been in the bargaining unit since July 1, 1997 shall receive a one-time 1.0 percent equity increase added to the current base salary retroactive to July 1, 2001.

4. Salary Range Review Task Force.

The College and the Union negotiators shall constitute the Salary Range Review task force. The consultant to conduct the Salary Range Review will be mutually selected by the College and the Union and ultimately subject to the approval of the Board of Trustees. The decision of the Board of Trustees is not grievable. The selected consultant will be submitted to the Board of Trustees for approval by October 31, 2005. Any extension of time by the Board of Trustees to review and approve the consultant shall not be grievable and not subject to the grievance procedure in the parties' collective bargaining agreement. The estimated time for completion of the consultant's review is 6 to 12 months. However, any extension of time for completion shall not be grievable and not subject to the grievance procedure in the parties' collective bargaining agreement. The College and the Union shall meet to mutually consider the impact of the Salary Range Review.

5. Reclassification

- A. If a Unit Member's duties and responsibilities change significantly so that he assumes additional responsibilities not specified in the original job description that require additional skill, knowledge and/or ability, the College will undertake a job evaluation to determine if the employee is entitled to a job reclassification. Should a job reclassification be in order, an appropriate salary adjustment will be forthcoming. Job reclassifications will be conducted utilizing specific criteria that will be made available to the Association.
- B. The College shall have the right to change the job description as required by the needs of the College. The College will advise the Unit Member and provide him with a revised job description. The Association may, at its sole discretion, pursue job reclassification decisions with the Personnel Committee of the Board of Trustees whose decision in the matter shall be final and binding, and not subject to arbitration.

ARTICLE XXIV MERIT RECOGNITION

1. The College President will have a fund available from which to recognize employees for meritorious service. Such recognition, the basis therefore and the amount thereof shall be at the sole discretion of the President upon the approval

of the Board of Trustees. Neither the amount of the merit recognition nor non-recognition is subject to the Grievance or Arbitration provisions of this Agreement.

2. A task force will be formed to develop written criteria for eligibility during the first year of this contract.

ARTICLE XXV PART-TIME EMPLOYMENT

Unit Members shall have the second right of refusal (first right to be given to HCCC faculty) for three (3) additional contact hours of overload for teaching and three (3) contact hours of overload for counseling positions per semester including summer positions in their area/division. Compensation shall be at the prevailing overload rate.

ARTICLE XXVI HOLIDAYS

- 1. Unit Members shall have the following holidays:
 - Independence Day
 - Labor Day
 - Thanksgiving Day
 - Day after Thanksgiving
 - Christmas Eve
 - Christmas Day

- One Week between Christmas & New Year's Day
- New Year's Day
- Martin Luther King, Jr.'s Birthday
- President's Weekend (2 days)
- Good Friday
- Memorial Day
- 2. Unit Members will be granted four (4) "floating" holidays each year, which shall be used during each fiscal year, in place of Columbus Day, Election Day, Veterans Day and the day after New Year's Day. If not used by the Unit Member(s), these "floating" holidays cannot be carried over into subsequent fiscal years.
- 3. Whenever the work schedule is such that an employee is required to work on an approved holiday, the employee will be granted a substitute day off at a later date mutually convenient to the employee and the supervisor.
- 4. An employee on unpaid leave of absence shall not be entitled to pay for a holiday during such leave.
- 5. The College will attempt to give a minimum of three (3) days notice whenever possible when a member of this unit is required to work on a scheduled holiday.

The Association recognizes that an emergency situation could arise requiring less than three (3) days' notice.

6. Unit Members shall receive as a day off work either the day before or day after a holiday when the holiday falls on a weekend.

ARTICLE XXVII REDUCTION IN FORCE

1. Termination of Unit Members

In the event of a termination of a Unit Member due to a fiscal crisis, a natural diminution in the number of students in a program or a reduction in programs, the College will adhere to the time provisions as previously set forth in the New Jersey Administrative Code, Title 9A, Chapter 7, Subchapter 2, Section 7, as outlined below.

The Board of Trustees shall notify each Unit Member who is to be laid off of such fact 120 days before the date of layoff for layoffs due to fiscal crisis, and 210 days before the date of layoff for layoffs due to a natural diminution in the number of students in a program or a reduction in programs.

2. Outplacement Services

At its discretion, the College may elect to provide outplacement services to a Unit Member who is terminated as a result of a fiscal crisis, a natural diminution in the number of students in a program, or a reduction in programs. The assistance will be limited to that which is reasonable as determined by the College. A decision by the College to refrain from outplacement assistance is not subject to the Grievance or Arbitration provisions of this Agreement.

3. Buy-Out

During the term of this Agreement, there shall be a one-time buyout with respect to Unit Members employed by HCCC for a certain period of consecutive years. The terms of such a buyout shall be established by HCCC in its discretion in consultation with the Union and shall not serve in any way as a precedent requiring further buyouts.

ARTICLE XXVIII TERMINATION OF UNIT MEMBERS WHOSE POSITIONS ARE GRANT FUNDED

All Unit Members whose employment will be terminated by virtue of a discontinuation of the Grant by which his or her position was funded will be notified by the Board of Trustees of the employment loss and a reorganization of the department, if any, as soon as is practicable following the Board becoming aware of the discontinuation of funding. The Association will also be notified by the Board of the employment loss and a reorganization of the department, if any, as soon as is practicable following the Board becoming aware of the discontinuation of funding.

Ø.

6

ARTICLE XXIX MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

1. Weather Emergency

- A. In the event the College closes due to a weather emergency, employees will be credited with a full day's compensation.
- B. If an employee cannot report to work due to a weather emergency and the College has not been officially closed, the absence will be charged to accumulated vacation or personal leave.
- C. Announcements of weather emergency closings will be on specified radio stations or via telephone. The College will provide a list of radio stations to Unit Members.

2. Publication of Agreement

The cost of publication of this Agreement shall be borne equally by the College and Association.

3. College Policies

The College agrees that any policy developed for unlawful workplace harassment, nepotism, or a code of ethics will be attached to this Agreement as an Appendix. The Association acknowledges and agrees that the policies shall not be grievable or subject to arbitration under Article XVIII (Grievance Procedure) of this Agreement.

4. Action Titles

No bargaining unit member may function in an acting title capacity unless it is approved by the Board of Trustees. In the event of an emergency, if a bargaining unit member is required to assume an acting title, the College will seek approval from the Board of Trustees within a reasonable period of time.

ARTICLE XXX FULLY BARGAINED PROVISIONS

This Agreement represents and incorporates the complete and final understanding and settlement by the parties of all bargainable issues that were the subject of these negotiations.

ARTICLE XXXI NO WAIVER

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the failure to enforce any provision of this Agreement or exercise one's right pursuant thereto shall not be deemed a waiver thereof. This Agreement is not intended and shall not be construed as a waiver of any right or benefit to which the parties herein are entitled.

ARTICLE XXXII NEGOTIATION OF SUCCESSOR AGREEMENT

- 1. It is agreed by both parties to provide in a timely fashion information necessary to conduct and promote fruitful negotiations.
- 2. The parties agree enter into collective negotiations over a successor agreement no later than April 1, 2010, and in no instance earlier than January 1, 2010.
- 3. Whenever members of the bargaining unit are mutually scheduled by the parties hereto to participate during working hours in conferences, meetings or in negotiations with respect to the collective bargaining agreement, they will suffer no loss in pay.
- 4. This Agreement shall not be modified in whole or in part by the parties except by an instrument in writing duly executed by both parties.
- 5. The College agrees not to negotiate concerning said unit employees in the negotiating unit as defined in Article I of this Agreement, with any organization other than the Association for the duration of this Agreement.
- 5. During the term of this Agreement, neither party shall be required to negotiate with respect to any such matter whether or not covered by this Agreement and whether or not within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or executed this Agreement.

ARTICLE XXXIII NOTICES

All notices, requests or other communications hereunder or in connection herewith shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if mailed via U.S. prepared certified mail, return receipt requested, to the following:

As to the College:

()

F,

- Dr. Glen Gabert
 President
 Hudson County Community College
 70 Sip Avenue
 Jersey City, New Jersey 07306
- John Shinnick Vice President for Human Resources and Communications Contract Administrator Hudson County Community College 26 Journal Square Jersey City, New Jersey 07306

As to the Association:

Estelle Greenberg
 President
 Academic Administrative Association
 70 Sip Avenue
 Jersey City, New Jersey 07306

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to the within Employment Agreement have, by their authorized representative, set their hands and seals this 10 day of Argust 2006.

HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY POLYEGE

By: William J. Netchert

Chairperson, Board of Trustees

By: All Follows

Glen E. Gabert, Jr., Ph.D.

President

32

Witness

HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE ACADEMIC ADMINISTRATIVE ASSOCIATION

By: Estelle F. Greenberg
President

5)

HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING June 24, 2014

VIII. PERSONNEL RECOMMENDATIONS

8. COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE AND THE HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE ACADEMIC ADMINISTRATIVE ASSOCIATION,

WHEREAS, the Collective Bargaining Agreement between Hudson County Community College and the Hudson County Community College Academic Administrative Association expired on June 30, 2013; and

WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College and the Hudson County Community College Academic Administrative Association engaged in collective negotiations for a successor collective bargaining agreement for the period from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2015; and

WHEREAS, Full-time unit members will receive a base salary increase of two percent (2%) retroactive to July 1, 2013 and effective July 1, 2014, a full-time unit member will receive a two percent (2%) base salary increase; and

WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College and the Hudson County Community College Academic Administrative Association memorialized their final agreement as to all negotiated issues by setting their signatures on June 17, 2014 to a Memorandum of Agreement (a copy of which is attached hereto), which recites their final agreement as to all negotiated issues;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community College that the Collective Bargaining Agreement between Hudson County Community College and the Hudson County Community College Academic Administrative Association is in effect from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2015, is extended by the June 17, 2014 Memorandum of Agreement (a copy of which is

Harold Stahl
Bakari Lee
June 24, 2014
AYE AYE AYE AYE AYE AYE AYE ASSENT AYE AYE AYE AYE
RESOLUTION ABOPTED*** Lakley 6-24-14 Order Date

The HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE ("HCCC") and the HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE ACADEMIC ADMINISTRATIVE ASSOCIATION ("Association") hereby enter into this Memorandum of Agreement ("Agreement") with respect to the modifications, amendments and additions to the collective bargaining agreement between HCCC and the Association, July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2013 ("CBA"). All terms and conditions contained in the CBA shall remain unchanged, except as modified as follows:

1. Duration:

July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2015.

2. Wages:

- Full-time unit members employed prior to July 1, 2013, and still employed with HCCC as of the signing of this Agreement will receive a base salary increase of two percent (2%) retroactive to July 1, 2013.
- Effective July 1, 2014, a full-time unit member will receive a two percent (2%) base
 salary increase.

3. Salary Review Committee

The Association and HCCC, through their respective representatives, agree to meet to discuss classification as it relates to salary structure within the bargaining unit. As this solely relates to a review of such classification, this provision is not intended as a salary re-opener and is not grievable or subject to arbitration under Article XVIII of the CBA. This review may be used in consideration with the contract negotiations for a successor agreement.

d. Article VII Discipline

Section 3 "Procedure" is modified as follows:

"Progressive discipline, which among other things includes a counseling, written warning or suspension shall be used whenever possible. However, depending on the nature of the offense/infraction, progressive discipline may not be required."

5. Article XII Staff Development

- Add new paragraph after "3. Tuition Remission" as follows:
 - 4. Tuition Waiver
 - Full-time employees, their spouse and dependents may take courses at the College tuition free, inclusive of fees, provided space is available.
 - 2. Full-time employees, their spouse and dependents, may take courses at the Culinary Arts Institute tuition free, excluding fees and uniforms, provided space is available. For the purposes of this Article, family member shall be defined as spouse and dependent children.
- Job related non-credit courses, including those offered through the College's Non-Credit Program Department, may qualify under the Staff Development Program.

6. Article XXIII Compensation

- Add new paragraph after "C" under section "5. Reclassification" as follows:
 - C. With respect to a unit member's temporary performance of additional duties and responsibilities not specified in the unit member's original job description, a stipend compensation amount, mutually agreeable to both the College and the unit member, will be provided. However, the acceptance or rejection of the assignment will be made at the sole discretion of the unit member.

Miscellaneous:

- (a) This Memorandum of Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties.
- (b) This Memorandum of Agreement is subject to ratification by the Board of Trustees of the Hudson County Community College and by the membership of the Hudson County Community College Academic Administrative Association. The undersigned represent that they are authorized to enter into this Memorandum of Agreement on behalf of their respective principals.
- (c) HCCC shall prepare a collective bargaining agreement incorporating this Memorandum.
- (d) The parties agree to recommend that their respective principals ratify this Memorandum of Agreement.

HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE ACADEMIC ADMINISTRATIVE ASSOCIATION (1. Jouel Liela Septenhal Datto Ministrative Liela Septenhal	HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
- Elley Regiard	

HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING November 20, 2012

VIII. PERSONNEL RECOMMENDATIONS

5. COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE AND THE HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE ACADEMIC ADMINISTRATIVE ASSOCIATION.

WHEREAS, the Collective Bargaining Agreement between Hudson County Community College and the Hudson County Community College Academic Administrative Association expired on June 30, 2011; and

WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College and the Hudson County Community College Academic Administrative Association engaged in collective negotiations for a successor collective bargaining agreement for the period from July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2012; and

WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College and the Hudson County Community College Academic Administrative Association memorialized their final agreement as to all negotiated issues by setting their signatures on October 19, 2012 to a Memorandum of Agreement (a copy of which is attached hereto), which recites their final agreement as to all negotiated issues:

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community College that the Collective Bargaining Agreement between Hudson County Community College and the Hudson County Community College Academic Administrative Association is in effect from July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2013, is extended by the October 19, 2012 Memorandum of Agreement (a copy of which is attached hereto).

INTRODUCED BY:	<u>Joanne Kosakowski</u>
SECONDED BY:	James Fife
DATE:	November 20, 2012
Fahrenholz, Karen Fife, James Kenny, Roberta Kosakowski, Joanne Lee, Bakari Peña, Jeanette Sires, Adrienne Stack, Katia	AYE AYE AYE AYE AYE AYE AYE ABSENT ABSENT ABSENT AYE
Zampella, Alfred Netchert, William, Chair	AYE
Ayes	Date

The HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE ("HCCC" or "College") and the HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE ACADEMIC ADMINISTRATORS ASSOCIATION ("Association") hereby enter into this Memorandum of Agreement ("Agreement") with respect to the modifications, amendments and additions to the collective bargaining agreement between HCCC and the Association, July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2011 ("CBA"). All terms and conditions contained in the CBA shall remain unchanged, except as modified as follows:

Contract Duration: July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2013

Salary Increases:

- For the period 7/1/11 to 6/30/12, there shall be no salary adjustments.
- Full-time unit members employed prior to 7/1/12 and still employed with the College as of the signing of this Memorandum of Agreement will receive a 2.0% salary increase, retroactive to 7/1/12.
- Productivity Adjustment: Full-time unit members whose base salary is less than \$50,000 will receive a one-time adjustment of \$550 to be added to their base salary. Full-time unit members whose base salary is \$50,000 or more will receive a one-time payment of \$550 that will not be included into base salary. The productivity adjustment determination will be based on the employee's base salary as of October 1, 2012, before the application of the 2% increase.

Article III – Miscellaneous Provisions (Harassment)

Delete the three paragraphs in Section 2 and replace with the following: The College has a strong commitment to provide a work environment free from unlawful harassment and discrimination in the workplace. The protected classifications include, but are not limited to, sex, affectional, or sexual orientation, race, color, religion, national origin, age, disability, or ancestry. The College's Non-Discrimination/Anti-Harassment Policy sets forth the substantive and procedural guidelines.

Article VIII. Section 1.A.4 - Payment for unused sick days Eliminate the existing paragraph and replace with the following:

- For all unit members with ten (10) years of service employed prior to June 30, 2011, the College will pay fifty percent (50%) of the unit member's current per diem base salary rate for all accrued but unused sick days up to a maximum of fifteen thousand dollars (\$15,000) at the time of
- In accordance with law, for all unit members with ten (10) years of service employed on or after June 30, 2011, the College will pay fifty percent (50%) of the unit member's current per diem base salary rate for all accrued but unused sick days up to a maximum of fifteen thousand dollars (\$15,000) at the time of retirement.

Article VIII. Section 8. - Sabbaticals

- Paragraph E (Compensation): Delete existing language and replace with the following: Compensation during the leave shall be full salary for one (1) six-month period or half salary for twelve months, subject to approval
- Paragraph F (Terminal Sabbatical): Delete this section in its entirety.
- Sabbatical Procedures: A task force comprised of Association member(s) and the College representative(s) will meet to make recommendations on procedures for sabbatical leaves. Implementation of the recommendations is subject to the approval of and is at the sole discretion of the College President. The decision of the President is not subject to

Article XIV – Insurance

 Modify article to reflect the following: Employee health care insurance contributions will be in accordance with C.78, P.L. 2011.

Article XV - Phased-Out Retirement

Delete this section in its entirety.

Article XXVII - Reduction in Force

 Eliminate the existing two paragraphs and replace with the following: In the event the College exercises its right to effectuate a reduction in force for reasons of economy and efficiency, the Board of Trustees shall provide each employee to be laid off with 105 days notice prior to the

Article XXIX – Miscellaneous

Change from "Action" to "Acting"

Miscellaneous

- (a) This Memorandum of Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties.
- (b) This Memorandum of Agreement is subject to ratification by the Board of Trustees of the Hudson County Community College and by the membership of the Hudson County Community College Academic Administrators. The undersigned represent that they are authorized to enter into this Memorandum of Agreement on behalf of their respective principals.
- (c) Subsequent to ratification by the parties, HCCC shall prepare a collective bargaining agreement incorporating this Memorandum of Agreement.

Hudson County College and Hudson County College Academic Administrators Assn. Memorandum of Agreement Page 3 of 3

- (d) The parties agree to recommend that their respective principals ratify this Memorandum of Agreement.
- (e) The mediator retains jurisdiction.

FOR THE COLLEGE
10-1
The state of the s

Ange State

Alide June

Date: 12/19/12

Date: 10/19/2012

HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING February 16, 2010

VIII. PERSONNEL RECOMMENDATIONS

10. COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE AND THE HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE ACADEMIC ADMINISTRATIVE ASSOCIATION.

WHEREAS, the Collective Bargaining Agreement between Hudson County Community College and the Hudson County Community College Academic Administrative Association expires on June 30, 2010; and

WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College and the Hudson County Community College Academic Administrative Association engaged in collective negotiations for a successor collective bargaining agreement for the period extended from July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2011; and

WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College and the Hudson County Community College Academic Administrative Association memorialized their final agreement as to all negotiated issues by setting their signatures on January 27, 2010 to a Memorandum of Agreement (a copy of which is attached hereto), which recites their final agreement as to all negotiated issues:

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community College that the Collective Bargaining Agreement between Hudson County Community College and the Hudson County Community College Academic Administrative Association that was in effect from July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2010, is extended through June 30, 2011 by the January 27, 2010 Memorandum of Agreement (a copy of which is attached hereto).

INTRODUCED BY:	<u>Katia Stack</u>
SECONDED BY:	Karen Fahrenholz
DATE:	February 16, 2010
Brennan, Timothy Catlaw, Raymond Fahrenholz, Karen Fife, James Kenny, Roberta Kosakowski, Joanne Lee, Bakari Sires, Ädrienne Stack, Katia Zampella, Alfred Netchert, William, Chair	ABSENT AYE
	RESOLUTION ADOPTED corder Date

The HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE ("HCCC") and the HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE ACADEMIC ADMINISTRATIVE ASSOCIATION ("Association") hereby enter into this Memorandum of Agreement ("Agreement") with respect to the modifications, amendments and additions to the collective bargaining agreement between HCCC and the Association, July 1, 2005 to June 30, 2010 ("CBA"). All terms and conditions contained in the CBA shall remain unchanged, except as modified as follows:

1. <u>Duration</u>:

July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2011.

2. Wages:

 Effective July 1, 2010, Unit Members will receive a 4.25 percentage salary increase only for the year of the CBA. This increase does not apply to starting salaries, which remain unchanged.

Miscellaneous:

- (a) This Memorandum of Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties.
- (b) This Memorandum of Agreement is subject to ratification by the Board of Trustees of the Hudson County Community College and by the membership of the Hudson County Community College Academic Association. The undersigned represent that they are authorized to enter into this Memorandum of Agreement on behalf of their respective principals.
- (c) HCCC shall prepare a collective bargaining agreement incorporating this Memorandum.

(d) The parties agree to recommend that their respective principals ratify this Memorandum of Agreement.

HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE ACADEMIC ADMINISTRATIVE ASSOCIATION

HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Thruch Julia IR		1/27/10
Meder t- AAA/Herre Direc	ker Koman	Resources

The HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE ("HCCC") and the HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE ACADEMIC ADMINISTRATIVE ASSOCIATION ("Association") hereby enter into this Memorandum of Agreement ("Agreement") with respect to the modifications, amendments and additions to the collective bargaining agreement between HCCC and the Association, July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2015 ("CBA"). All terms and conditions contained in the CBA shall remain unchanged, except as modified as follows:

1. Duration:

July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2017 - Two year contract.

2. Wages:

- Full-time unit members employed prior to July 1, 2015, and still employed with HCCC as of the signing of this Agreement will receive a base salary increase of two percent (2%) retroactive to July 1, 2015.
- Full-time unit members employed prior to July 1, 2016, and still employed with HCCC as of the signing of this Agreement will receive a base salary increase of two percent (2%) retroactive to July 1, 2016.

3. Article VII Discipline:

Modify section 2 to reflect the following: "This notice will include the reasons for the meeting or interview, including a description of the relevant infraction."

4. Article XII Staff Development:

Modify section 2. A to reflect that meal allowances will be reimbursed at the Federal per diem rates effective upon Board ratification.

5. Article XI Hours of Work

• Add new paragraph after I "C" as follows:

For those eligible employees, compensatory time off after 40 hours of work will be given at the rate of no less than 1.5 hours of comp time for each hour of overtime worked. Compensatory time must be taken by the end of the next pay cycle or the subsequent pay cycle only upon authorization of the Department Head.

6. Article XXIII Compensation:

The last paragraph reflected in the prior memorandum of agreement that addressed temporary performance of additional duties is modified to add the following language to the end of that section as follows:

The College will only use the term Interim for temporary appointments. Responsibilities and conditions of employment for the position will be determined solely by the President of HCCC on a case by case basis depending upon the position and the department initiatives at the time of the appointment. Appointment, proposed increase or stipend for the assignment requires approval by the HCCC Board of Trustees. An employee will be returned to his/her original assignment at the end of the Interim period.

Miscellancous:

- (a) This Memorandum of Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties,
- (b) This Memorandum of Agreement is subject to ratification by the Board of Trustees of the Hudson County Community College and by the membership of the Hudson County Community College Academic Administrative Association. The undersigned represent that they are authorized to enter into this Memorandum of Agreement on behalf of their respective principals.
- (c) HCCC shall prepare a collective bargaining agreement incorporating this Memorandum.
- (d) The parties agree to recommend that their respective principals ratify this Memorandum of Agreement.

HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY		HUDSON CO	UNTY		
COLLEGE ACADEMIC ADMINISTRATIVE ASSOCIATION		COMMUNITY	Y COLLEGE		
Jose M. Jours		Maye	05	- 11/	
11/08/2016		9 CH	no)		9 1.4
MBSICBNT					
	. •				